
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.   

Please ask for: 
Graham Seal 

 
 
 

13 January 2020 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a special meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL CABINET to be held on Tuesday 21 January 2020 at 7.30pm in the Council 
Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   APOLOGIES  
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on the Agenda. 
 

3.   ITEMS RELATING TO THE BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK FOR 
RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL  
 

 To consider the following items:- 
 

(a)    Budget 2020/21 (Pages 3 - 6) 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and 
Cultural Services) providing an update on the 2020/21 budget 
proposals for recommendation to the Council.  
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



(b)    Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 8 January 2020 
(Pages 7 - 12) 

 To consider the comments of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee at its meeting on 8 January 2020 on the budget proposals 
for 2020/21. 
 

 
Circulation: Councillors T.Kingsbury (Chairman) 

D.Bell (Vice-Chairman) 
S.Boulton 
T.Mitchinson 
 

N.Pace 
B.Sarson 
F.Thomson 
 

 Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Graham 
Seal, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Part I 
Main author: Richard Baker 
Executive Member: Duncan Bell 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
SPECIAL CABINET – 21 JANUARY 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

BUDGET 2020/21 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The proposed 2020/21 budget papers were discussed at the Cabinet meeting on 
6 January 2020.  This report provides an update to these proposals for 
recommendation to Council.   

1.2 The budget papers approved at the 6 January Cabinet meeting were presented 
to the Resources and Overview Scrutiny Committee (ROSC) on 8 January 2020, 
and this report outlines any feedback and/or recommendations to Cabinet arising  
from that committee.  

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Cabinet consider the comments and recommendations made by Resources 
and Overview Scrutiny Committee on 8 January 2020. 

2.2 That Cabinet recommend the budget 2020/21 and associated papers to Council 
for approval. 

3 Explanation 

Recommendations/Comments from ROSC 

3.1 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee met on 8 January 2020 to consider 
the budget proposals, and to provide any comments or recommendations.  

3.2 The following recommendations were made by the committee for consideration 
by Cabinet: 

 that cabinet increase council set fees and charges annually in future years. This 
is to avoid council set fees and charges falling behind the market rates and 
general inflation, which can lead to sudden large increases at irregular intervals; 
and, 

 that Cabinet consider making a budgetary provision for more youth diversionary 
services to reduce anti-social behaviour. 

4 Financial Implication(s) 

4.1 The financial implications are set out within the reports submitted to cabinet on 
the 6 January 2020. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

5 Link to Corporate Priorities 

5.1 The Council’s budget proposals directly support all of the Council’s Corporate 
Priorities.  

6 Legal Implication(s) 

6.1 The Council is required by the Local Government Finance Act 1992 to make 
estimates of gross revenue expenditure and anticipated income, leading to a 
calculation of a council tax requirement and the setting of an overall budget and 
Council Tax. The amount of the budget requirement must be sufficient to meet 
the Council’s legal and financial obligations, ensure the proper discharge of its 
statutory duties, and lead to a balanced budget. The Council should be satisfied 
that the proposals put forward are a reasonably prudent use of resources in both 
the short and long term, and that the interests of both Council Tax payers and 
ratepayers on the one hand and the users of Council services on the other are 
both taken into account. 

6.2 The principal statutory provision governing the fixing of rent for council property is 
contained in section 24 of the Housing Act 1985. This has now been 
supplemented by provisions in the Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 that 
details enforced rent reductions by local authorities and was passed in March 
2016. 

6.3 Sub-section (1) provides that authorities may “…make such reasonable 
charges…. as they may determine”. This section should be considered with 
regard to section 76 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. This act put 
a duty on local housing authorities to prevent a debit balance arising in their HRA 
and also imposed ring-fence restrictions on the use of the account. It is now no 
longer possible for a local housing authority to subsidise rents from its general 
fund, or use HRA resources for non-specified activities. 

6.4 The MTFS sets out the framework for setting future budgets and levels of Council 
Tax. Members are reminded that Council must take into account the advice of 
the Executive Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) (Chief 
Finance Officer) on the robustness of future budget proposals and the adequacy 
of the proposals for reserves. The Council has a legal duty to set a lawfully 
balanced budget. 

6.5 The MTFS sets out how the Council will fulfil its Best Value Duty to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions 
are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness.  In doing so the MTFS also acknowledges the Duty to Consult 
representatives of a wide range of local persons.   

6.6 The treasury Management Strategy and prudential indictors have been produced 
in line with the Local Government Act 2003, and with regards to Section 151 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 which states that “every local authority shall 
make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and 
shall secure that one of their officers has responsibility for the administration of 
those affairs.” 

Page 4



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications with the recommendation in this 
report.   

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications arising directly from this report. 

9 Human Resources Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no human resources implications arising directly from this report. 

10 Communication and Enagament Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no communications and engagement implications arising directly from 
this report. 

11 Climate Change Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no climate change implications arising directly from this report. 

12 Risk Management Implications 

12.1 The budget is an important part of the Council’s risk management process. There 
are considerable risks to the council’s short and medium term budget strategy 
including the impact of public sector austerity, inflation and other changes in the 
national economy, spending exceeding budgets, pressures on existing budgets, 
further reductions in grant and legislative change demands for new spend. The 
budget process includes the recognition of these risks in determining the 2019/20 
budget and relevant risk provisions are set out in the body of the report. 

12.2 A working balance is maintained for both revenue accounts to cushion against 
known and unknown financial risks. Risk management in the financial context is 
set out in Medium Term Financial Strategy set out in appendix L. 

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 In developing individual budget proposals officers have undertaken an equality 
impact assessment, where applicable.  
 

Name of author Richard Baker 
Title Head of Resources 
Date 13 January 2020 
 
 
Appendices/Background Papers  
 
Budget papers submitted to 6 January 2020 Cabinet, link below: 

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=10869#mgDocuments 

 

Page 5

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=10869#mgDocuments


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 

Part 1 
 For Decision 
  

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BROROUGH COUNCIL 
SPECIAL CABINET – 21 JANUARY 2020 
 
 
Comments from the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 8 January 
2020:- 
 
Members considered the report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment 
and Cultural Services) on the budget setting for 2020/21.  The report noted that on 
the 6 January 2020, Cabinet had considered the proposed General Fund Budget, 
Capital Programme, Housing Revenue Account Budget, Fees and Charges, Medium 
Term Financial Strategy and Governance Framework for financial years 2020/21 – 
2022/23. 
 
In accordance with the Council’s budget and policy framework rules, the Resources 
and Overview Scrutiny Committee was formally invited to consider the proposals as 
part of the budget setting process and make comments to the Special Cabinet 
meeting on 21 January 2020. 
 
Officers summarised the Budget 2020/21 proposals and advised on the savings, 
together with the current financial status of the Council. 
 
During discussion the following points were raised and addressed:- 
 
General Fund 
 
Appendix A 
 

1. Increase in earmarked reserves for Climate change initiatives (Council’s 
commitment) from £50k to £150k for 2020/21. 

2. Following the Peer Review, an exercise was undertaken which proved 
successful; it generated around £800k of efficiencies.  This followed the 
positive outturn on the 2018/19 financial position.  

3. Pension Reserves – it was noted that £1.2m was set aside into earmarked 
reserves from the General Fund for its share of future deficit lump sum 
payments. The HRA share would be charged directly to the HRA.   

4. New Homes Bonus – Council received £1.028m and this will partly be used to 
support budget expenditure.  Noted that no legacy payment associated with 
the 2020/21 grant award.  Government will consult in Spring 2020. 

5. Officers clarified the situation in respect of Hertfordshire Business Rates Pool 
– this has been accepted and includes the County Council and five 
districts/boroughs.   
 

Appendix B 
 

1. Officers clarified the position on Asset Conditions Survey and confirmed that it 
was just for one year. Officers confirmed that this does not include housing 
stock – mainly commercial asset portfolio. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3b



 
 
 

 
 
 

2. Housing Benefit Grant reductions –  This grant is from DWP for administration 
of benefits and will be reducing as housing benefit claimants move to 
universal credit. 

 
Appendix C 
 

1. Reduction in GLL fees – savings were being made through the merger with 
Finesse Leisure in 2018, Officers advised that this was on target and were set 
to increase in 2020/21 in line with the planned programme of savings. 
 

Appendix D 
 

1. A full time Parking Services Officer has been added – this officer is required 
for the demanding improvements to parking in all areas of the Borough. 

2. Concern was express in respect of the reduction in AFM funding.  It was 
noted that the reduction of £50k was a share of the reduction based on the 
County Council’s budget savings.  It was noted that Officers had written to the 
County to voice our concerns in respect of reduction levels for recycling, and 
that Officers would share these letters with the Committee. 

3. Private Sector Housing stock condition survey - £50k is the cost of the survey.  
This survey is carried out once every five years.  Members asked if they had 
concerns on property conditions, if they could influence the sample selected. 
Members were advised that a briefing note could be circulated on the project, 
and whether/how Members may be able to influence the sample selection 
process.  
 

Appendix E 
 

1. Members considered the fees and charges and concern was raised in respect 
of some substantial increases – for example, the car parking charges; a 
question was raised whether the increase destroys businesses in the local 
areas?  Officers advised that it was only the day rates increasing, the other 
rates were remaining the same.  This increase would be felt by the 
commuters rather than the shoppers so retailers should not see a decline in 
trade. 

2. Estate management fees, it was confirmed that these fees relate to legal fees 
for extensions to property leases.  This covers the Council’s estate.  These 
fees do not concern the Estate Management Scheme of the Borough. 

3. Concern was expressed in respect of (HCC) DBS checks – it was confirmed 
the fees were paid by the taxi drivers; initially the Council pays for the checks 
but the funds are reimbursed by the taxi drivers. 
 

Housing Revenue Account 
 
Appendix F 
 

1. A Member sought clarification on the maintenance and supervision cost for 
the Housing Revenue Account budget. This was provided by Officers. 

2. A Member sought clarification on the special services costs for the Housing 
Revenue Account budget. This was provided by Officers - these services 
covered community lighting, laundry, CCTV and grounds maintenance. 

3. A Member queried the rent increase and whether it would impose additional 
burden of hardship?  The increase was explained. Officers set out that there 

Page 8



 
 

 

 
 

was discretionary support available, and also that the Council worked closely 
with CAB (budget 95k) to provide support to the public. 

4. Questions were raised on the actual impact of the increases; how these affect 
the Borough’s residents.  The increase for this year was noted as 2.7%.  With 
the introduction of the rent reduction policy there has been an end to rent 
convergence.  Officers explained that neighbouring tenants, with identical 
properties sometimes pay different rent levels, the reason for this is that 
legislation does not allow the Council to make changes to current tenancies in 
order to continue with convergence.  It was clarified that once the property 
becomes vacant and it is re-let; it is then let at the target rent level.  This 
maximises the Council’s income from assets. 

5. The cost of housing repairs was considered together with the cost of 

individual house maintenance, along with the type of repair e.g. gas boilers.  
Officers to provide further information on the types of repairs and breakdown 
of costs. 

6. Members queried if officers had considered the total impact of the Council tax 
and housing rent increase, and what the maximum cost would be. Officers 
stated they would come back on this point. 

 
Appendix G 
 

1. The appendix was noted. 
 
Appendix H 
 

1. Members sought clarification of the increases to community bus hire 
and the Jim McDonald Centre. It appeared that the increases had been 
rounded up.  Officers explained that for some time these services had 
been frozen and were now being brought in line with the fees being 
charged elsewhere, and to take into account inflation and longer term 
sustainability of the services.  It was suggested that perhaps fees 
should be increased each year therefore not creating a high increase 
after a few years.  It was agreed to recommend to Cabinet that a little 
and often increase; to avoid irregular increases. 

2. Members requested further clarification on the follow: 
a) Why was there a rent increase for Howlands House, as these 

dwelling were being closed down? Officers to revisit the increases 
proposed for Minster and Howlands Houses’ programme; it may be 
that these could be removed. Officers to clarify. 

b) Why is the rent for Inspire House studio (new dwelling) same as a 
one bedroom property in Howlands House? 
Officers to provide information on the two questions raised at the 
meeting.  

 

Capital Programme 
 
Appendix I 
 

1. A question was raised in respect of the rephasing of capital 
expenditure – it was explained that certain works had not been carried 
out in the current year therefore money had been moved to the 
following year. 

Page 9



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Appendix J 
 

  1. The Executive Member for Resources explained the situation 
regarding 

      borrowing to lend to the new housing company to increase income. 
 
 
Appendix K 
 
         1. The Appendix was noted. 

 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and Governance Framework 
 
Appendix L 
 

1. The Medium-Term Financial Strategy and Financial Governance 
Framework document was a result of merging three documents. 

2. Members were advised that there is significant amount of economic 
uncertainty but the Council had a healthy financial position, which is 
monitored. 

3. The Council has already set a business plan and priorities for the 
period 2018 to 2021. 

4. Members were advised of the typographical error on Appendix L for 
Revenue Contribution to Capital, which should read £7,383. 

5. A 30 year business plan has been developed.   
6. A question was raised in respect of ‘right to buy’, why there is a 

decline in the number of properties being purchased.  Officers 
explained that there had been a general reduction since the start of 
the reinvigoration programme. The Executive Member for 
Resources explained that the majority people who wished to 
purchase had done so already therefore there has been a drop in 
the number of people applying. 

7. Parking improvements – Officers explained that funds were set 
aside for improvement and parking bays within the Parking 
programme budget for the term of the capital programme. 

8. The budget process was explained as follows: ROSC comments 
would be presented to Special Cabinet on 21 January 2020 for 
consideration and these would be presented to Council on 3 
February 2020.  

 
RESOLVED 

 
1. That the Committee recommends to Cabinet to increase Council 

set fees and charges annually in future years. This is to avoid 
Council set fees and charges falling behind the market rates and 
general inflation, which can lead to sudden large increases at 
irregular intervals. 

2. That Cabinet consider making a budgetary provision for more 
youth diversionary services to reduce anti-social behaviour. 

Page 10



 
 

 

 
 

3. That the Committee’s comments on the Council’s budget 
proposals for 2020/21 be submitted to the Special Cabinet 
meeting on 21 January 2020 for consideration following which 
the budget would be presented to Council meeting 3 February 
2020. 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Budget 2020/21
	3b Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 8 January 2020

